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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 41‘ Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s. Neo 
Infracon Limited will be held on Friday, 27" September, 2024 at 3.00 p.m through video 
conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (““OAVM”) without the in-person 
presence of shareholders to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

|. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including 
Consolidated Audited Financial Statements) of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors' and the Auditors’ 
thereon. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

2. Approval of Related Party Transaction: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

act”) with Rules made there under, other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force) and pursuant to the approval of the Audit Committee and on the recommendation 
of the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members be and is hereby 

accorded to the Company to enter into and/or continue to enter into and/or continue the 
related party transaction(s), contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ agreement(s) (whether by way 
of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series. of transactions in 
terms of the explanatory statement to this resolution and forming part of the explanatory 
statement to this resolution on the respective material terms and conditions as set out in 
the said explanatory statement. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include any duly constituted 
committee empowered to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this 
resolution) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 

it may deem fit in its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in 
this connection including finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), 
arrangement(s), agreement(s) and such other documents as may be required, seeking all 
necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the 
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Company, to delegate all or any of its powers conferred under this resolution to any 
Director of the Company and to resolve all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts 
whatsoever that may arise in this regard and all action(s) taken by the Company in 
connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are 

hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.” 

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board 
Date: 04/09024 For Neo Infracon Limited 

Registered Office: Sd/- 
52/52-A, Nanubhai Desai Road, Ankush Mehta 

9, MuljiThakarsi Building, Sindhi Lane, DIN:06387976 

Mumbai - 400 004, Maharashtra Chairman & Managing Director 
CIN : L65910MH1981PLC248089 

Website: www.neoinfraconltd.com 

Email: neoinfraconlimited@gmail.com 
Contact No.: 022- 23856390 
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NOTES: 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the 

general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 

Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 

and Circular no. 02/2022 dated May 5, 2022 and Circular no, 11/2022 dated December 

28. 2022 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through 

video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” (collectively referred to 

as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its 

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 in relation to 

“Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 — Covid-19 pandemic”, 

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 in relation to “Relaxation 

from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 due to the COVID -19 pandemic” (collectively referred 

to as “SEBI Circulars”). On 5 January, 2023 (collectively referred to as “SEBI 

Circulars”) permitted the conduct of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be 

the Registered Office of the Company. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through 

video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) which does not require 

physical presence of members at a common venue. Pursuant to these circulars, this 

Integrated Annual Report is being sent by email only. 

N
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 

2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 

2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of 

the business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered 

into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of 

casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the 

date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

3. The relevant explanatory Statements to be annexed to the Notice pursuant to Section 102 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called "the Act"), is annexed hereto. 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 

mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM 

will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 

Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
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5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the 
Meeting is not annexed hereto. 

7. In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at www.neoinfraconltd.com. The Notice may also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited (“BSE”) at www.bseindia.com 
also on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

8. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from Saturday, 22nd September, 2023 to Friday, 27th September, 2023 
(both days inclusive) for Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

9. The Register of Contracts or arrangements, maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Registered 
Office of the Company. 

10. Pursuant to Section 171 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the venue of 
the Annual General Meeting. 

11. The cut-off date for the purpose of determining the Members eligible for participation in 
remote e-voting (e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM) and voting at the 
AGM through e-voting system is 20th September, 2023 (‘Cut-off Date’). 

12. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 
8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 

20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. MCA Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and MCA 
Circular No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022. 

13. The Company has appointed Mr. Vijay Kumar Mishra, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Mumbai as the Scrutinizer for analyzing the remote e-voting as well as e-voting 
processes conducted during e-AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

14. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast 
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment 
of the Company and shall make, not later than forty eight hours of the conclusion of the 
AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour/against, if 
any, to the Chairperson or a person authorized in writing, who shall countersign the same 
and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

15. The Results declared along with the Report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the 
website of the Company www.neoinfraconlimited.com and on the NSDL website and 
shall also be forwarded to BSE Limited (BSE). 
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16. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement 
shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 11.00 am 
and 1.00 pm on all working days except (Sundays and holidays) 

17. In terms of Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
Company may give notice through electronic mode addressing to the person entitled to 
receive such e-mail as per the records of the Company or as provided by the depository, 
provided that the Company shall provide an advance opportunity at least once in a 
financial year, to the member to register his e-mail address and changes therein and such 
request may be made by only those members who have not got their email ID recorded or 
to update a fresh email ID and not from the members whose e-mail IDs are already 
registered. In view of the above, the Company hereby requests the members who have not 
updated their email IDs to update the same. Further, the members holding shares in 
electronic mode are requested to keep their email addresses updated with the Depository 
Participants. Members holding shares in the physical mode are also requested to update 
their email addresses by writing and quoting their folio numbers to the M/s. Purva 
Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company (“R&T 

Agent”) by email to support@purvashare.com or to the Company by email 
cs@neoinfraconltd.com. 

18. Register their email address and changes therein from time to time with M/s. Purva 
Sharegistry (India) Private Ltd. for shares held in physical form and with their respective 
Depository Participants for shares held in demat form. 

19. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is 

not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint 
authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate 
there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

20. The Company’s Statutory Auditors, M/s D Kothary & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India vide registration number 
105335W, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five 
consecutive years at the Board Meeting of the Directors held on 10" February, 2020 on a 
remuneration mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. 
Pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from May 07, 2018, the 
requirement of seeking ratification of the Members for the appointment of the Statutory 
Auditors has been withdrawn from the Statute. 

In view of the foregoing amendment, ratification by the Members for continuance of their 
appointment is not being sought at this AGM. 

The instructions for e-voting are as under: 

The remote e-voting period begins on 24" September,2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 
26" September, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
Purva Sharegistry for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 20th 

September, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall 
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be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 
the cut-off date, being 20th September, 2024. 

Purva e-Voting System — For Remote e-voting and 

e-voting during AGM/EGM 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general 
meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming 
AGM/EGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means 
(OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through 
VC/OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and 
MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted 
at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Purva 
Sharegistry (India) Private Limited (Purva) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e- 
voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by Purva. 

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 
the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 
etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis. 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, , the facility to appoint proxy to 
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in 

pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the 
members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend 
the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.neoinfraconltd.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM/EGM Notice is also 
disseminated on the website of PURVA (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and 
e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. https://evoting. purvashare.com/. 
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(iv) 

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 

dated May 05, 2020. 

8. In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and 

after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be 

held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 

31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General 
Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January, 13,2021. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING 
DURING AGM/EGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

(i) | The voting period begins on 24" September 2024, 9.00 AM and ends on 26" September 2024, 

5.00 Pm. During this period shareholder’s of the Company, holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20" September 2024 of 20" September 

2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Purva for 

voting thereafter. 

(ii) | Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at 

the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEB] Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 

under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e- 

voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has 

been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 

been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register 
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing 
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

e- Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e- Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
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Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

  

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 
securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 

user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 

any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on 

Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

  

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e- Voting option for 

eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e- Voting page of 

the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME/PURVA, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 

able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

  

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 
securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

  
!) 

2) 

3)   
If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e- Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp_ 

Visit the e- Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 

your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), 

Password/OTP_and_a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

  

    9 
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authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e- 

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

  

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 
securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants     
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After 
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e- 

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

  

  

  

  

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 

022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30     
  

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual 

shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website https://evoting.purvashare.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholder/Member” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
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c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 

4) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 

on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

5) Ifyou are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 

Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

  

  

@ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
  

      
Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

Details e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

OR Date of please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

Birth field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

(DOB) 
  

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(vil) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. 

(viii) | For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 

the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVENT NO. for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO/ABSTAIN?” for voting. Select the option YES or NO or ABSTAIN as desired. 

The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution, option NO implies that you dissent 

to the Resolution and option ABSTAIN implies that you are not voting either for or against the 

Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the “NOTICE FILE LINK” if you wish to view the Notice. 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 

vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiii) | Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 
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(xiv) Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians — Remote Voting 

@ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF; NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to https://evoting. purvashare.com and register themselves in the “Custodians   

/ Mutual Fund” module. 

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to evoting@purvashare.com. 

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to 

vote on. 

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 

in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
cs(@neoinfraconltd.com (designated email address by company) , if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the Purva e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is the same as 
the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend the meeting will be available where the EVENT NO. of 
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for 
Remote e-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 

4, Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / [Pads for better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to 

meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
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at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 

demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These 

queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the 

EGM/AGM. 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM 

and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, 

then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting 

during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned 

copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

Company/RTA email id. 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the Purva e-Voting 

System, you can write an email to evoting@purvashare.com or contact at 022-49614132 and 022- 

49700138. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Ms. 

Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti 

Industrial Estate, J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400011 or send an email to 

evoting@purvashare.com or contact at 022- 022-4961 4132 and 022-35220056. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2023 

Item No. 3 — Approval of Material Related Party Transactions of the Company 

The Company is engaged in the activities of Real Estate Developments which are 
carried out either directly or through its subsidiaries. The annual consolidated turnover 
of the Company as on latest audited financial statements i.e., March 31, 2024 is Rs. 
485.31 Lakhs. 

In furtherance of its business activities, the Company have entered into / will enter 
into transactions / contract(s) / agreement(s) / arrangement(s) with related parties in 
terms of Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing 
Regulations”). All related party transactions are at arm’s length and in the ordinary 
course of business. 

Further, all related party transactions are undertaken after obtaining prior approval 
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises 
of majority of independent directors. All related party transactions have been 
unanimously approved by the Audit Committee after satisfying itself that the related 
party transactions are at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The 
Audit Committee of the Company reviews on a quarterly basis, the details of all 
related party transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries during 
the previous quarter, pursuant to its approvals. 

The Transaction entered into between the Company and its Director Related Party are 
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the resolution or may be deemed 
to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company, if any. 

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors 

Date : 04/09/2024 For Neo Infracon Limited 

Sd/- 
Ankush Mehta 

DIN:06387976 
Chairman & Managing Director 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

Your Directors present 415 Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with 

the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 and other accompanying 

reports, notes and certificates. 

(Amount in Lacs) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

Year ended Yearended | Yearended | Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Revenue from operations 199.86 188.70 382.86 643.40 

Revenue from Other Income 1.86 - 102.45 151.91 

Total Income 201.73 188.70 485.31 795.32 

Profit / (loss) | before Financial 26.85 16.25 3.77 81.62 

Expenses, Preliminary expenses, 

Depreciation and Taxation 

Less: Financial expenses 13.72 12.49 56.86 72.70 

Operating profit / (loss) before 13.13 3.16 16.91 8.92 

Preliminary expenses, 

Depreciation & Taxation 

Less: Depreciation & Preliminary 0.14 22.96 21.19 

expenses written off . 

Profit before Taxation 12.99 3.76 (6.06) (12.27) 

Less: Provision for Taxation - - 

Current Tax 1.67 - 6.31 4.55 

Short/(Excess) tax provision for 

earlier years - - - 0.30 

Deferred Tax 0.17 - 0.30 (0.57) 

Profit after Taxation 11.14 3.76 (12.66) (16.55)     
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OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE 

1. Operations: 

The performance of the company during the year was satisfactory. During the year under review the 
turnover of the Company was Rs.201.73/- (in Lacs) as against Rs. 188.70/-(in Lacs) during the 

previous year. The Consolidated turnover of the Company was Rs.485.31/- (in Lacs) as against Rs. 
795.32/- (in Lacs) in previous year. 

2. Share Capital: 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.6,00,00,000. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid 
up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31% March, 2024 was Rs.5,30,68,000 divided into 
53,06,800 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up. During the year under review the company 
has not issued shares with differential voting right nor granted Stock Option or Sweat Equity. 

3. Dividend& Reserves: 

The Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24 under review. During 
the year under review no amount was transferred to reserves. 

4. Matters Related to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

A. Composition of the Board: 

As on 31* March, 2024, the Board of Directors comprises of 5 (Five) Non-Executive Directors 
and 1 (One) Executive Director. The Non-Executive Directors include 4 (Four) Independent 

Directors (including a Woman Director). The composition of the Board is in conformity with the 
provisions of the Act and Regulation17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Company Act, 2013 which, inter alia, 
stipulates that the Board should have an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors with at least one Woman Director and at least 1/3 of the Board should consist of 

Independent Directors. 

B. Director's attendance record and details of Directorships positions held: 

  

    
  

  

  

  

          

Name of Director |Designation & Category of Directorship | No. of Board 

Meeting 

attended 

Mr. Ankush Mehta {Chairman & Managing Director 4 

Mr. Bhavik Mehta [Non-Executive Director 4 

Ms. VarishaKanungo |Non-Executive Independent Director 4 

Mr. Rajen Mehta Non-Executive Independent Director 4 

Mr. Rahul Kanungo [Non-Executive Independent Director 4 

Mr. Nitesh Jain Non-Executive Independent Director 4 
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Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment 

The Company has received declaration of Independence from all the Independent Directors as 

required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of 

independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of 

SEBI (LODR). In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the said conditions of 

Independence. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the 

Company’s Code of Business Conduct & Ethics. 

The Company has four Independent Directors, as a set of Practice, Company is used to take 

declaration of Independence from Independent Director in the first board meeting of Directors after 

their appointment and in every first board Meeting of the Financial Year. An Independent Director 

who has been appointed in last AGM shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on 

the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment for next five years on passing of a 

special resolution by the Company. 

C. Key Managerial Personnel : 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has three Key 

Managerial Personnel viz. Mr. Ankush Mehta as the Chairman & Managing Director and Chief 

Executive Officer, and Mr. Dilip Mehta as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 

5. Board Evaluation: 

The Board of Directors carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of 

Board Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The performance 

of the Board, the Committees and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs 

from all the Directors through a questionnaire. 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors of the Company includes 

various parameters like qualifications, knowledge, level of engagement and contribution, skills and 

experience in the respective fields, honesty, integrity, ethical behaviour and leadership, Independence 

of judgment, attendance at the meetings, understanding the business, regulatory, competitive and 

social environment, understanding strategic issues and challenges etc. In a separate meeting of 

Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors and performance of the Board as 

a whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of the Non-Executive Directors. Performance 

evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director 

being evaluated. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation process. 

6. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors: 

The Board has met 4 times during the Financial Year 2024-25 i.e. on 15th May, 2023; 10" August, 

2023; 09th November, 2023, 13" January, 2024, 9" February, 2024.The intervening gap between the 
meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Board Committees: 
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10. 

11. 

The Board of Directors has constituted three Committees which are as follows: 

1. Audit Committee, 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

All decisions pertaining to the constitution of Committees, appointment of Members and fixing of 

terms of reference / role of the committees are taken by the Board of Directors. A detailed particular 

relating to the above Committees forms an integral part of this report. 

Deposits: 

During the year under review your Company has not accepted any deposit. Hence the provision for 
disclosure of the information relating to deposit is not applicable. 

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company: 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relates and the date of the Report. 

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future: 

No significant and material order passed by the any regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company's operations in future. 

Consolidated Financial Statements and Subsidiary Companies: 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company had 2 subsidiaries. Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act”), consolidated financial statement of the Company and all its subsidiaries have 

been prepared, which is a part of this Annual Report.The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’), financial statements of the subsidiary companies are not required to be sent to the 

members of the Company. The Company will provide a copy of separate annual accounts in respect 
of each of its subsidiary to any shareholder of the Company if so desired and said annual accounts 
will also be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. In accordance with 
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the consolidated 

financial statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of its subsidiary 

are available on the Company’s website. 

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of the subsidiary in the 
prescribed format AOC | is provided in the Financial Statement, which forms an integral part of this 
report. The statement also provides the details of performance and financial position of the 
subsidiary. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

  

18



Neo Infracon Limited Annual Report 2023- 24 

12. 

13. 

14, 

15. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best 

of their knowledge and belief and according to information and explanation obtained by them, confirm 
that: 

A. In the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31°t March, 2024, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures, if any; 

B. Such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the financial statements have been selected 
and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31** March, 
2024 and Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

C. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

D. The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

E. Proper internal financial controls had been laid down and followed and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

F. Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in places 

which were adequate and operating effectively. 

Annual return: 

The Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) read with rules of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
on 31% March, 2024 is available on the website of the Company at: www.neoinfraconltd.com. 

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 in respect of conservation of energy and 

technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the 

Company during the year under review. 

The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are as below: As 

the company business is totally situated in within the national boundaries and no agreement for 

purchase or sale done with any foreign parties and hence for the year under review company has no 

foreign exchange earnings or expenses. 

Corporate Social Responsibility: 

During the year under review company has not exceeds any of the limit prescribed in section 135 

hence the company does not require to comply with the provisions of Corporate Social 

Responsibility nor required to make any provision of expenses for CSR activities given in Schedule 

VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees: 

  

19



Neo Infracon Limited Annual Report 2023- 24 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19, 

The corporate affairs of the Company are carried out in a fair and transparent manner. The Company 

has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with any instances of fraud and 

mismanagement in the Company. The whistle blower mechanism shall provide for adequate 

safeguards against victimisation of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct 

access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee on appropriate or exceptional cases.It is affirmed 

that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186: 

During the year under review the Company has not provided any short or long term loan and 

advances, securities, or made investment in any body-corporate or any other person as defined in 

section 186 of Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has provided a Corporate Guarantee to the bank for its Wholly Owned Subsidiary. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 

All Related Party Transactions are first placed before the Audit Committee for its prior / omnibus 

approval which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature and thereafter referred to the Board. The 

transactions entered into with the related parties are at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of 

business and are in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 

there under and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

The requisite disclosure is furnished in Form AOC 2 as Annexure | of this Report. There are 

materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the 

interest of the Company at large. All related party transactions are mentioned in the Notes to the 

Financial Statements and also disclosed to Stock Exchange on half yearly basis pursuant to clause 

23(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. None of the 

transactions with any of related parties were in conflict with the Company’s interest. 

Particulars of Employees: 

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read 

with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. Pursuant to Section 136(1) of the Act, this Report is being sent 

to the Members of the Company excluding the aforesaid information. However, copy of this statement 

may be obtained by the Members by writing to the Company Secretary. 

None of the employees listed in the said Annexure is related to any Director of the Company. None 

of the employees hold (by himself or along with his / her spouse and dependent children) more than 

2% of the equity shares of the Company. 

Statutory Auditors: 

The M/S. D. Kothary& Co. Chartered Accountants has vem. ee asa Statutory PENCE of the 
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20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

be held in the year 2024, without ratification of the members at every AGM. The observations made 

in the Auditors’ Report of M/s. D Kothary& Co., Chartered Accountants for the year ended March 

31, 2024, read together with relevant notes thereon, are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any 

comments. 

Auditors' Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 to 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there 

under, the Board of Directors have appointed M/S. D Kothary & Co., Charted Accountants to 

undertake the Statutory Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Report of the 

Statutory Auditor is annexed herewith in Annual Report. 

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditor 

in the Statutory Audit Report. 

Secretarial Audit Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had 

appointed M/s. VKM & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial 

Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is 

annexed herewith as Annexure II and forms an integral part of this Report. 

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements: 

The Company has an integrated framework for managing risks and internal control mechanism. The 

Company follows policies and processes to ensure accuracy in financial information recording and 

compliance with statutes and laws. The internal financial controls have been embedded in the business 

processes. Internal controls are regularly tested for design, implementation and operating 

effectiveness. 

The company has an adequate Internal Control System, Commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations. The scope of the Internal Audit (IA) function outsources to M/s. 

Chaturvedi & Patel, Chartered Accountants as of current is well defined in the engagement letter of 

the Internal Auditor duly approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor evaluates the 

adequacy of the internal control system in the company on the basis of statement of operation 

procedure, instruction manuals, accounting policy and procedure. 

Audit Committee: 

  

Terms of Reference: 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit Committee”) is entrusted with the 

responsibility to supervise the Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The 

composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. All members of the Audit 

Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics 

and Risk management. It functions in accordance with its terms of reference that defines its authority, 
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responsibility and reporting function. The terms of reference of Audit Committee inter alia amongst 

other things include mainly the following: 

1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 
entity; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: - 
a. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board‘s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management, 

compliance with accounting standards, 

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

f. disclosure of related party transactions, if any; 

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report, if any. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board 

for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the 

monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties ; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

1]. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the Official heading the department, reporting structure 
—coverace and frequency of internal audit- 
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14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 

reporting the matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 

as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any in the payment to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

19. Approval of the appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience 

and background, etc. of the candidate; 

20. Carrying out any other function as mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee; 

21. Review of information as mandated by the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

(1) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

(2) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted 

by management; 

(3) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

(4) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

(5) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject 

to review by the audit committee. 

(6) Statement of deviations: 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock exchange. 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice. 

During the year under review Four Audit Committee Meetings were held on following dates i.e. 15" 

May,2023; 10" August, 2023; 9'* November, 2023 and 9" February, 2024. The requisite quorum | 

was present at all the meetings. 

Attendance: 
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Name of Director | Designation &Category of | No.of Meeting |Attended 
Directorship entitled to attended 

Mr. Rajen Mehta | Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4 

Mr. Ankush Mehta | Chairman & Managing Director 4 4 

Mr. Nitesh Jain Non-Executive Independent Director 4 -             
24. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is to oversee the selection of 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on criteria related to the specific requirement of 

expertise, independence and execution. The NRC evaluates the performance of Directors and Senior 

Management Personnel based on the expected performance criteria. NRC also recommends to the 

Board the remuneration payable to Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. 

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed and 

adopted a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their 

remuneration pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Following is the role and 

responsibility of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

(1) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of 

the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

(2) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the board of 

directors; 

(3) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

(4) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors 

their appointment and removal; 

(5) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

Composition, Meetings held and attendance 

The composition of the NRC of the Board is in conformity with the Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. | (One) meeting of the NRC was held during the year under 
review, viz. 9"" February, 2024. The necessary quorum was present for the meetings. The composition 
of the NRC as on 31% March, 2024 and the details of attendance of each Member at these meetings 
are given below: 

Attendance: 

  

Name of Director | Designation &Category ofNo. of Meetings| No. of Meetings 

  

          

Directorship entitled to attended attended 

Mr. Rajen Mehta Non-Executive | 1 
Independent Director 
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Mr. Ankush Mehta | Chairman & Managing l 1 
Director 

IMs. VarishaKanungo | Non-Executive 1 l 

Independent Director 
  

25. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”) as on 31" March, 2023, 

were as under: 

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue 

of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by the shareholders. 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 
being rendered by its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/ statutory 
notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

5. The SRC shall meet at least once in a year. 

6. To attend Meeting(s): The Chairman of the SRC shall attend the Annual General Meetings of the 

Company to provide any clarification on matters relating to its scope sought by the shareholders of 
the Company. 

7. The Terms of Reference shall be reviewed and reassessed by the SRC, periodically and appropriate 
recommendations shall be made to the Board to update the same based on the changes that may be 
brought about due to any regulatory framework or otherwise. 

Composition, Meetings held and attendance 

The composition of the SRC of the Board is in conformity with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 
20 of the Listing Regulations. During the year under review, the Committee met once i.e., on 9% 
February, 2024 the necessary quorum was present at the meeting. The composition of SRC and the 
details of attendance of each Member at the meeting are given below: 

Attendance: 
  

Name of Director Designation & Category of No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 

  

          

Directorship entitled to attended 

attended 

Rajen Mehta Chairman 1 1 

Ankush Mehta Member 1 1 
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Varisha Kanungo Member 1 1 
          

  

26. Vigil Mechanism: 

The Committee shall maintain an oversight of the adequacy of the whistle blowing/ vigil mechanisms. 
It shall review the Company’s arrangements for its employees, stakeholders and Directors to raise 
concerns, in confidence, about suspected wrongdoing in the Company on matters including those 
related to ethics, compliance, financial reporting, accounting and auditing. 

The Committee shall ensure that these arrangements allow independent investigation of such matters 
and appropriate follow up action. 

The whistle blower mechanism shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons 
who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit 
Committee on appropriate or exceptional cases. 

27. Disclosure under The Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

And Redressal) Act, 2013: 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace ( Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.All 
women employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) are covered under this policy. 

All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain an environment free of sexual 
harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological. 

It is further reported that no women employee during the year under review has approach the 
management for having a sexual harassment complaint. 

28. Risk management: 

29. 

Your Management has been constantly in the process of identifying risks and reviewing the factors to 
mitigate risks associated with operations, revenue generation, regulations and ensuring 
accomplishment of objectives by addressing them. In order to maximize returns in any business, it is 
necessary to mitigate the risks associated in the business operations. With the expansion and 
consequent growth in the business operations of the Company, it is essential to reassess and revisit 
the risk management framework from time to time. Business risks and mitigation plans are reviewed 

and the internal audit processes include evaluation of all critical and high risk areas. Critical functions 
are rigorously reviewed and the reports are shared with the Management for timely corrective actions, 

if any. The main focus of the management is to review business risks, test and review controls, assess 

business processes besides benchmarking controls with best practices in the industry. 

Policy for determining Materiality: 

In pursuance of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015, the company has adopted this policy for determination of materiality based on the 
criteria mentioned in the said regulation ("Material Information") and that the information has been 

and is being promptly forwarded to the Stock Exchange. 

30. Policy on Preservation of Documents: 
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31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

In terms of Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") the Board has adopted this Policy for Preservation of 
Documents, as required under applicable regulations, adhering to the following mandatory 
provisions. 

To determine preservation period for records/documents based on their reference value and legal 
requirements. The following aspects are considered while arriving at the preservation period: 

Company's own information retrieval needs (reference value) 
Statutory requirements under respective statutes 
Litigation requirements 
To ensure easy retrieval 
To ensure that unwanted records do not occupy storage space. o

e
 
O
N
 

Regulation 30(5)-Disclosure of events or information: 

One or more Key Management Personnel would be authorized for the purpose of making disclosures 
to the Stock Exchanges under this Regulation and the contact details of such personnel shall be also 
disclosed to the stock exchange as well as on the website of the Company. 

Archival Policy: 

This Policy is framed in compliance of The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations") notification dated 
September 2, 2015 and other circulars as may be specified in this regard. 

Listing on Stock Exchanges: 

Pursuant to the Reg. 109 - Securities Exchange Board of India (ICDR) Regulation - 2009 
(amendment) and Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations - 2015 which were notified on September 2, 2015 with the objective of 
bringing the framework governing the regime of listed entities in line with the Companies Act, 2013 
and as per LODR 2015, a new Listing Obli gation and Disclosure Requirement was executed with 
BSE Limited. The Annual Listing Fee for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been duly paid within the 
stipulated time to BSE Limited. 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards: 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively. 

35. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors had, in accordance with the provisions of 
Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the 
SEBI (LODR), met separately and discussed and reviewed, inter-alia, the performance of Non- 
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole after taking into consideration the views of 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
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36. 

37. 

38. 

a3. 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 22"! February, 2023, inter alia, to 
assess the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Company Management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. The 
Independent Directors, inter-alia, also reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors, 
Board as a whole, taking into account the views of non-executive directors. 

Corporate Governance Certificate: 

As per Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Regulations) Regulations requirement, all the companies who's paid up Share Capital is less than 
Ten Crore or Net worth less than Twenty-Five Crore are exempted from complying the Corporate 
Governance regulations. With reference to the aforesaid regulation the Company’s paid up Share 
Capital is less than Ten Crore and hence the Company is exempted from complying with the said 
regulations related Corporate Governance. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under the Listing Regulations regarding 

the review of operations, performance and future outlook of the Company is provided in a separate 
section forming an integral part of this Report. 

Internal Financial Report: 

The Company has established and maintained adequate internal financial controls with respect to 
financial statements. Such controls have been designed to provide assurance with respect to provide 
reliable financial and operational information. During the year under review, such controls were 

operating effectively and no material weaknesses were observed. 

Acknowledgements: 

The Board. of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and 
support extended by the Company’s employees, shareholders, customers, financial institutions, banks, 
vendors, dealers and investors. 

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors 
Date: 04/09/2024 For Neo Infracon Limited 

Ankush Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 06387976 
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ANNEXURE I 

Form AOC- 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) Of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm's length transactions 
under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: Not Applicable 

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

  

  

Transaction with related parties during the year: (Amount in Lacs) 

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 

Remuneration 

Mr. AnkushN.Mehta 18.00 12.00 

Mr. BhavikN.Mehta 18.00 14.00 

Mr. Darshik Mehta 2.40 2.40 

Rent Paid 

Mr.Ankush Mehta 0.80 - 

Income 

Neo Builders & Developers 199.86 188.70 

Outstanding as on 31**March payable 
Naresh K. Mehta 351.00 351.00 
Dilip K Mehta 103.60 103.60 
Neo Builders and Developers - z 

Neo Builder Ltd 7         
  

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors 
Date: 25/05/2024 ; For Neo Infracon Limited 

Ankush Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 06387976 
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Form AOC 1 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 

  

  

ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Part "A": Subsidiaries 

(In Lacs) 

Particulars Details 

Name of the subsidiary New-Tech Infrastructure Pvt Ltd | Nocil Infrastructure Ltd 
  

The date since when the subsidiary 
was acquired 
Reporting period for the subsidiary | Same as Holding Company Same as Holding Company 
concerned, if different from the 

holding Company's reporting 

Reporting Currency and Exchange | NA NA 
rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial Year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          
Share Capital Rs. 121.00 Rs.100.00 
Reserves & Surplus Rs. 251.60 Rs.332.36 

Total Assets Rs. 2562.74 Rs.609.03 
Total Liabilities Rs. 2562.74 Rs.609.03 
Investments NIL NIL 

Turnover Rs.278.09 Rs.45.64 
Profit before Taxation Rs. (37.94) Rs.18.89 

Provision for Taxation Rs. NIL Rs. 4.75 

Profit after Taxation Rs. (37.94) Rs.14.14 

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL 
Extent of Shareholding (in %) 100% 100% 
  

Part "B ": Associate Companies / Joint Ventures - Not Applicable. 

Date: 25/05/2024 For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: Mumbai 

Ankush Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN: 06387976) 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORTS 

Your Directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended 
31%March, 20234 

The Management Discussion and Analysis have been included in consonance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance as approved by The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The management of the 
company is presenting herein the overview, opportunities and threats, initiatives by the Company and overall 
strategy of the company and its outlook for the future. This outlook is based on management's own 
assessment and it may vary due to future economic and other future developments in the country. 

Economic Overview 

Global economy 

In view of disruptions due to global pandemic, many Banks in emerging market and developing economies 
employed asset purchase programs for the first time in their history. These programs were successful in 
lowering bond yields without triggering currency depreciations. In spite of pandemic, the global economy 
is set to expand by 5.6% in 2021, strongest growth. This recovery is uneven and largely reflects sharp 
rebounds in some major economies. The global outlook is subject to significant downside risks, including 
the possibility of upcoming COVID-19 waves and financial stress amid high debt levels of Emerging Market 
and Developing Economies (EMDEs). 

The global real estate market grew from $3694.47 billion in 2022 to $3976.18 billion in 2023 at a compound 
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.6%. The Russia-Ukraine war disrupted the chances of global economic 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, at least in the short term. The war between these two countries has 
led to economic sanctions on multiple countries, a surge in commodity prices, and supply chain disruptions, 
causing inflation across goods and services and affecting many markets across the globe. The real estate 
market is expected to grow to $5209.84 billion in 2027 at a CAGR of 7.0%. 

Indian economy 

India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world, backed by its robust democracy and 
strong partnerships. India’s total GDP is $3.2 trillion according to the year 2022 and these numbers are very 
huge, his GDP makes India a big economy in the world. If we see its GDP rank, so Its GDP rank is 6th in 
the world and also India a 6th largest economy by their GDP figures. 

Industry Review 

The real estate sector is one of the most globally recognized sectors, which comprise of four sub sectors - 
housing, retail, hospitality and commercial. The growth of this sector is well complemented. by the growth 
of the corporate environment and the demand for office space as well as urban and semi-urban 
accommodations. 

Rs 48,000 crore is allocated to the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna (PMAY). Placing focus on bringing 

transparency in the realty sector as well as affordable housing for everyone will play a crucial role in 
providing a much-needed boost to this industry. Also, it is the main highlight in the budget for the sector. 

Segment-wise Performance 
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The Company operates in only one segment for real estate construction and development activities. The 
Business Segments has been identified in accordance with Accounting Standard. 

Risk & Concerns 

The outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (i.e. COVID-19), which commenced in December 2019 has 

now spread across the world. India has been no exception and currently our country is looking to come out 
of second disastrous wave. At the same time, the country is progressing well in its vaccination program. All 
prominent rating companies and experts, including Reserve Bank of India have projected a healthy recovery 
of economic activities in India. However, the COVID-19 outbreak could become more severe and result in 

a more widespread health crisis and/or result in a global recession because of disruptions of economic 
activity. Any of these factors may have a material adverse effect on your Company’s financial condition 
and results of operations. 

Effective risk management is critical to an organization's success. Timely and effective risk management is 
of prime importance to our continued success. 

The sustainability of the business is derived from the following: 

i. Identification of risks. 
ii. The evolution of appropriate system to monitor them. 
iii. Risk Management through various strategies. 
iv. Implementing such strategies, subject to periodical audit and review. 
v. Reporting these risk mitigation results to the managerial level. 
vi. There is the risk of loss due to inadequate systems, processes or procedures. These may be attributed 

to human failure or technical problems given the increase use of technology and staff turnover. Your 
company has in place suitable mechanisms to effectively reduce such risks. The risks are continuously 
monitored and reviewed at various levels of management through an effective information system. 

Opportunities and Threats 

Some of the key trends of the industry that are favorable to the company to exploit these emerging 
opportunities are: 

I. Clients are more comfortable with uniform high quality and quick service and process across the 
enterprise. 

ll. There are good prospects for expanding further activities in this direction. 

Il. The company is also facing server competition from other Real estate companies Some of the key 
changes in the industry unfavorable to the company are: 
Heightened competition 

Increasing Compliances 

Attraction and retention of human capital Regulatory changes . 

Iv. Hybrid working models will also continue to drive demand for larger homes. 

Vv. Employers are expected to continue to offer flexibility to their employees in order to attract and retain 
talent. 

Green Initiative 

To support the “Green Initiative’, and to receive the copies of AGM notice and other communication from 
the Company, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the same 
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with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the Registrar in case the 
shares are held by them in physical form. 

E-voting 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under and the Listing 
Obligations, the Company has been with the assistance of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
providing remote (India) e -voting (voting from a place other than the venue of the Annual General 
Meeting) to its shareholders .The facility of E-voting can be availed by all the Shareholders having their 
shares in dematerialized form as well as in physical form. Detailed procedure for e-voting is mentioned 
in the Notes to the Notice of the 40 Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy 

Internal control systems are embedded in the processes across all functions in the Company. These systems 
are being regularly reviewed and wherever necessary are modified or redesigned to ensure better 
efficiency and effectiveness. The systems are subjected to supervision by the Board of Directors and the 
Audit Committee, duly supported by Corporate Governance. Company complies with all applicable 
statutes, policies, procedures, listing requirements and management guidelines. It Adheres to applicable 
accounting standards and polices. 

Human Resources 

I. The Management believes in maintaining cordial relations with its employees. The management 
recognizes the importance of Human Resources and effective steps will be taken to strengthen the 
same depending on the requirements. 

ll. The Company provided excellent working environment so that the individual staff can reach his/her 
full potential. 

Ii. The Company is poised to take on the challenges and march towards accomplishing its mission with 
success. 

Iv. The Company maintained good Industrial / Business relation in market which enhanced the 
creditworthiness of the Company. 

Employees are the key to achieve the Company’s objectives and strategies. The Company provides to the 
employees a fair equitable work environment and support from their peers with a view to develop their 
capabilities leaving them with the freedom to act and to take responsibilities for the tasks assigned. The 
Company strongly believes that its team of capable and committed manpower, which is its core strength, is 
the key factor behind its achievements, success and future growth. We are continuously working to create 
and nurture an organization that is highly motivated, result oriented and adaptable to the changing business 
environment. The industrial relations remained cordial during the year. 

Cautionary Statement: 

This management discussion and analysis contain forward looking statements that reflects your Company’s 
current views with respect to future events and financial performance. The actual results may differ 
materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of many factors. These include 
climatic conditions and economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations and 

taxation, natural calamities etc. over which the company does not have any control. 
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Certificate by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) (Pursuant to 

Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31*t March 

2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief; 

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading. 

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company's code of conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 

in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 

taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 

in the notes to the financial statements; and 

3) That there were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 

Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

For Neo Infracon Limited For Neo Infracon Limited 

Sd/- Sd/- 

Ankush Mehta Dilip Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 

DIN: 06387976 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25/05/2024 
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTPERSONNEL 

To, 

The Shareholders of Neo Infracon Limited, 

I hereby confirm that, as per the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement executed with the Stock 

Exchanges, all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed 

compliance with the "Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel", 

for the financial year 2023-24. 

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors 
Date: 25/05/2024 For Neo Infracon Limited 

Sd/- 
Ankush Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 06387976 
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VIJAY KUMAR MISHRA VKM & ASSOCIATES 
B. Com (Hons.), ACA .FC.S PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES 

PARESH D PANDYA 116, Trinity Building, 1st Floor, 227, Dr. C.H. Street, 
B.Com, A.C.S. Behind Parsi Dairy, Marine Lines (E), Mumbai ~400002. 

Tel.: 2207 7267 Fax : 2207 7542 Mob.: 93229 77388 

E-mail: vkmassociates@yahoo.com 

FORM MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31° MARCH, 2024 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 09 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Member, 

NEO INFRACON LIMITED 

52/52-A,Nanubhai Desai Road, 

9, Mulji Thakarsi Building, 

Sindhi Lane, Mumbai - 400 004. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by NEO INFRACON LIMITED (hereinafter 

called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the Statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter. 

r



We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31°t March, 2024 according to the 

provisions of: 

ao
e 

P
S
 

\ 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

The Securities Contracts ( Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under; 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed hereunder; 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment: Not Applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period. 

Reserve Bank of India,1934 and rules and regulations made there under and any modification, 

new enactment from time to time related to Non-Banking Financial Company; 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India , 1992 (SEBI Act); 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 — Not applicable to the company during the Audit 

period; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity)- Not applicable to the company during the Audit period; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable to the company during the Audit period; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registration to an Issue and Share Transfers 

Agents) Regulations, 1993; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 - Not applicable to the company during the Audit period; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 2018 - 

Not applicable to the company during the Audit period;



1. Other Laws applicable to the Company; 
i. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
ii. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

ill, Employee State Insurance Act, 1948 
iv. The Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
v. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

vi. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
vii. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 

vili. Competition Act, 2002 

ix. Shops and Establishments Act, 1948 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following; 

I. The Secretarial Standards issue by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
Il. The Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements entered into by the Company 

with Bombay Stock Exchange- 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance withthe provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case 
may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.



We further report that:- 

There was no Company Secretary and Compliance Officer in the Company from 13 January, 
2024 and the Company is in process for finding suitable candidate for the same post. 

For VKM & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

(Ae i} mf 
Lala 

(Vijay Kumar Mishra) 

Partner 

C.P.NoAI79 

UDIN : F005023F000448521 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 31/08/2024 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "ANNEXURE 

A" and forms an integral part if this report.



"ANNEXURE A" 

To, 

The Member, 

NEO INFRACON LIMITED 
§2/52-A,Nanubhai Desai Road, 9, 
MuljiThakarsi Building, Sindhi 
Lane Mumbai - 400004. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 

verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 

of accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 
5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

For VKM & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

ne. ‘ 
\ Lu AW y ~g 

(Vijay Kumar Mishra) 

Partner 
C.P.No.4279 

UDIN : F005023F000448521 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 31/08/2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 

Neo Infracon Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Neo Infracon Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and its Profit, its cash flows 

and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. There are no key audit matters to be disclosed. 

Information Other than the financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other 
Information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other 
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.



* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “ Annexure 
A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 
books of account.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and 

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2024 has not been paid/ 
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There is no amount due to transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company 
during the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note 39(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note 39(vi) to the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v. The dividend has not been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1 April 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the respective software. Further, the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and 
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per statutory requirements. 

For D. Kothary& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No, 105335W) 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

(Partner) 
(Membership No. 121190) 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25th May 2024 

UDIN No. 24121190BKBOTB3968



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” of our report of even date) 

i. Inrespect of its Property, plant & Equipment 

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant & equipment on the basis of available information; 

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; 

b) As explained to us, all the property, plant & equipment have been physically verified by the 
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the 
size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical 
verification; 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any 
immovable property as at the balance sheet date; 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not revalued its 
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the year; 

e) There are no proceedings initiated and are pending against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder; 

ii. In respect of its inventories: 

a) The inventories held by the Company comprise stock of units in completed projects and work 
in progress of projects under development. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, having regard to the nature of inventory, the procedures of physical 
verification by way of verification of title deeds and site visits by the Management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not been sanctioned working capital limits, in excess of five crore rupees, during any point of 
time of the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 

current assets. 

iii. In respect of loans and advances, guarantee or security provided: 

a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, or provided 
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, but the company 
had already given an Corporate Guarantee for Loan taken by subsidiary company from Bank and the 
outstanding balance of corporate Guarantee as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 15,00,00,000.



iv. 

vi. 

Vil. 

b) 

viii. 

b) During the year the Company has not provided security, granted loan and advances in the nature 
of loan to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Further, during the 
year the investments made and guarantees provided to companies are not prejudicial to the 
Company’s interest. 

c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(ili)(c), (d), (e) and (f ) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans granted, 
investments made and guarantees and securities provided. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any 
deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent 
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company and hence 
clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

In respect of statutory dues: 

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess 

and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with 
the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value 

Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2024 for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable. 

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31st 
March, 2024 on account of disputes are given below: 

  

  

Sr. Nature of Dues Amount Period to which | Name of the forum 

No. involved the amount 

relates 

1) Income Tax 3,52,71,440 AY 2016-17 CIT (Appeal)               

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961).



1x. 

(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by management, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any lender. 

(b) The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 
any government authority. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term loans at the 
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis 
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries. 

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. 

X. 
(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

xi. 

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed 
or reported during the course of our audit. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year and up to the date of this report. 

xii. The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where 

applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed: in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering the 
period up to March 2024,



XV. 

XVil. 

xviii. 

xix. 

XX. 

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with any of its 
directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary company or persons connected with such 
directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 
1934. 

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 

The provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

For D. Kothary& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No. 105335W) 

Deepak O. Narsaria 
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 121190) 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25t May 2024 
UDIN No. 24121190BKBOTB3968



Annexure ~ B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Members of 

Neo Infracon Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Neo Infracon Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due.to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For D. Kothary& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 105335W) 

Deepak O. Narsaria 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 121190) 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 May 2024 
UDIN No. 24121190BKBOTB3968



Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Sr. No. Particulars Nites As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023 

(% in Lakhs) (= in Lakhs) 

I. |ASSETS 

1. ‘|Non Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 17,34 0.00 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 5 1,077.93 1,077.93 

(c) Other non-current assets 6 71,91 71.91 

1,167.18 1,149.84 

2 |Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 7 79.05 24.17 

(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Trade receivables 8 99.20 125.43 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,94 3.35 

(iii) Loans 10 - “ 
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 3.62 5.32 

(d) Other current assets 11 50.80 46.81 

236.60 205,07 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,403.79 1,354.91 

Il, JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share Capital 12 530.68 530.68 

(b) Other Equity 13 116.52 105.38 
647.20 636.06 

LIABILITIES 

1 |Non Current Liabilities 

(a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.17 - 

(b) Other non Current Liabilites 15 28,37 28.37 

28.54 28.37 

2 |Current Liabilites 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 16 614.23 601.89 

(ii) Trade payables 17 

(a) total outstanding dues of creditors Micro and Small 
enterprises;and = - 

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and 

Small enterprises. 96,86 61,53 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 0.80 0.80 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 16.15 26.27 

(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - - 

728.04 690.49 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,403.79 1,354.91           

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O, Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta Dilip K. Mehta 

Director CFO 

DIN: 06387976 DIN: 01929640 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

 



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

2023-24 2022-23 
Particulars Not 

es (@ in Lakhs) (& in Lakhs) 

Revenue from operations 20 199.86 188.70 

Other incomes 21 1.86 - 

Total Income 201.73 188.70 

Expenses: 

Cost of Sales 22 142.72 145.04 

Employee benefit expenses 23 14.16 17.28 

Finance cost 24 13.72 12.49 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 4 0.14 - 

Other Expenses 25 18.00 10.14 

Total Expenses 188.74 184,94 

Profit before tax 12.99 3.76 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 1.67 - 

Short/ (Excess) tax provision for earlier years - = 

Deferred tax 0.17 - 

Profit for the year 11.14 3.76 

Other Comprehensive Income 

|Items will not be reclassified to profit & loss 

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on defined benefit plans - - 

Tax on above - - 

Total Comprehensive Income 11.14 3.76 

Earning per share on Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 30 

- Basic & Diluted 0.21 0.07 

  

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date ; 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Dilip K. Mehta 

DIN: 01929640 

 



Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

(t in Lakhs) (2 in Lakhs) 

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities : 

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 12.99 3.76 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation 0.14 - 

Interest Income (0.15) - 

Interest Expenses 13.72 12.49 

Operating Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital 26.70 16.25 

Changes in current assets and liabilities 

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 26.23 (44.91) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets - - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans - - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets (4.00) (0.13) 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (54.88) 5.40 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 35.33 4.29 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities - - 

Increase / (Decrease) in Loans - - 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current & Non-Current Liabilities (10.12) 8.80 

Cash Generated From Operations 19.26 (10.30) 

Payment of Taxes (Net of Refunds) 0.03 - 

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A) 19.29 (10.30) 

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities : 

Payment of property, plant & equipments & Intangibles (17.48) - 

Interest income 0.15 - 

Net Cash Flow From Investment Activities (B) (17.33) - 

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities : 

(Repayment) / Borrowing from financial institutions /Others 12.35 20.74 

Financial Expenses (13.72) (12.49) 

Net Cash From / (Used In) Financing Activities (C) (1.37) 8.25 

Net Increase In Cash Or Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 0.59 (2.05) 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year 3.35 5.40 

Cash And Cash Equivalents As At The End Of The Year 3.94 3.35 
        

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No, 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Dilip K. Mehta 
CFO 
DIN: 01929640 

 



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. 

b) 

d) 

Company’s Background: 
Neo Infracon Ltd (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled and 
incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 vide CIN - 
L65910MH1981PLC248089. The Company's registered office is located at 52/52A, 
Nanubhai Desai road, 9 Mulji thakarsi Bldg, Sindhi lane, Mumbai - 400004. The 

Company is engaged in the infrastructure sector, primarily in the construction of 
Commercial or Industrial Building & Civil Structures, Construction of Residential 
Complex. 

Material accounting policies: 

Statement of compliance: 

These financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, 

read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time). 

Basis of preparation and presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with 

the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated. These financial statements 

comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015] (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of 
the Act. 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the 
operating cycle of less than twelve months or based on the criteria of 

realisation/ settlement within twelve months period from the balance sheet date. 

Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements required the management to exercise 
judgment and to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going 

basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision 

and future periods if the revision affects both current and future period. 

Functional and presentation currency: 
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. 

Revenue Recognition: 
Revenue from real estate developmental projects under development is recognised 
based on ‘Percentage Completion Method’. 
The Percentage Completion Method is applied when the stage of completion of the 
project reaches a reasonable level of development. For projects that commenced on or



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

8) 

after 1st April 2012 or where revenue on a project is being recognised for the first time 

on or after that date, the threshold for ‘reasonable level of development’ is considered to 
have been met when the criteria specified in the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real 
Estate Transactions (Revised 2012) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India are satisfied, i.e., when: 
(i) The expenditure incurred on construction and development costs is not less than 25 

% of the construction and development costs. 
(ii) Atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with 

buyers. 
(iii) Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other legally 

enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the 
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply 
with the payment terms as defined in the contracts. 

Sale of plots and completed units is recognised at the sale consideration when all 
significant risks and rewards of ownership in the property is transferred to the buyer 
and are net of adjustments on account of cancellation. 

Facility charges, management charges, rental, hire charges, sub lease and maintenance 

income are recognised on accrual basis as per the terms and conditions of relevant 

agreements, 

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of relevant contracts or by 
using the effective interest method, where applicable. 

Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The Function currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements 
are presented in Indian rupees (rounded off to lakhs). 
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate that prevailing on the 
date of transactions. Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining 
unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end rates. The difference in 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign 
exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary) denominated in a foreign 

currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the closing rate at the year 

end. 

Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project 
cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are 
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual 
borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed 

specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is 

deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a 
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a 

weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity 
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

h) Employee Benefits: 
Retirement and Other Employee Benefits: 
Retirement and other Employee benefits are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 19 - 
Employee Benefits. 

i) Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits: 
Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 

ii) Provident Fund: 
Contribution to Provident fund (a defined contribution plan) made to Regional 
Provident Fund Commissioner are recognised as expense. 

iii) Defined Benefit Plans 
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is 
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being 
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising 
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) 
and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the 
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive 
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit 
or loss. Past service cost is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the 
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 

i) Taxation: 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

1 

1) 

Current Tax: 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as 
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the countries where the 
Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Deferred Tax: 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

i) 

k) 

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

III) Current and deferred tax for the year: 
Current and Deferred Tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to items recognised directly in Other Comprehensive income or equity, in which case 
the deferred tax is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and equity 
respectively. 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises of 
purchase price, applicable duties and taxes, any directly attributable expenditure on 
making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on 
borrowings attributable to acquisition/construction of qualifying PPE, that takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, upto the date the asset is 
ready for its intended use. The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located is required to be included in the cost 
of the respective item of property plant and equipment and Cost of major inspections is 
recognised in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as a replacement, if 
recognition criteria are satisfied and any remaining carrying amount of the cost of 

previous inspection is derecognised. PPE retired from active use and held for sale are 
stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and are disclosed 
separately. 

An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation and Amortisation: 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment and investment property have been 
provided on the straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical evaluation of the asset. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence 
that an asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset's carrying amount is written 

down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount. 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the 
carrying amount and are recognised within operating profit in the Income statement.



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable value, whichever is 
lower. Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials to the place of usage, 
excluding refundable duties and taxes. Cost is determined on the following basis: 
- Completed Flats- At lower of Cost or Market Value. 
- Construction Work in progress-At Cost. 

Construction Work in Progress includes Cost of Land, Construction Cost, allocated 

Interest and expenses incidental to projects undertaken by the company. 
Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs 
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

m) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures: 

On initial recognition, these investments are recognized at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequently, they are measured at cost. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such 
obligation can be reliably estimated. 

A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a 

possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an 

outflow of resources. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when 
flow of economic benefits is probable. 

Financial instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

A) Financial Assets 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 

i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost: 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. 
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months 
after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets 
are measured initially at fair value which usually represents cost plus transaction 
costs and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment loss if any.



Neo Infracon Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

P) 

q) 

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security and 
other deposits, cash and cash equivalent, employee and other advances. 

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): 

For investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the company 
has exercised the option to classify the investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value 
changes on the investment are recognized in OCI. The accumulated gains or losses 
on such investments are not recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale 
of such investment. 

ili) Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets other than the equity investments and investment classified as 

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. These include surplus funds invested in mutual 
funds etc. 

B) Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. 
For trade and other payable maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, 

the carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity. 
Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 

insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty. 

Fair value of financial instruments: 
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of 
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each 
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow 
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair 
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may or may not be 

realized. 

Fair value of financial instruments: 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of 
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each 
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow 
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair 

value result in general approximation of value, and such value may or may not be 
realized. 

Impairment of Assets: 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment: 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 

not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

t) 

the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of 
the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is 
reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. 

Fair value measurement: 

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting 
date. Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

Leases: 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 

That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. At the date of commencement of the lease, 
the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability 

for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except short-term leases and low value 
leases. 

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a 
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option 

is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on 
a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any 
options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease 
term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements 

undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the 
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the 
location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease 
term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
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economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the 
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the 
existing lease contracts. 

Earnings Per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year 
attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, 

attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the equity 
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the 
results are anti-dilutive. 

Cash Flow Statement: 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature 
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based 
on the available information. 
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are 
short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.



  

Neo Infracon Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

Note A :- Equity share Capital 

  

PARTICULARS Note (% in Lakhs) 
  

As at Ist April 2022 

Changes in Equity share capital during the year 

As at 31st March 2023 

Changes in Equity share capital during the year 

As at 31st March 2024 

531 

531 

12 531         

Note B : Other Equity (2 in Lakhs) 
  

Particulars 

Reserves & Surplus Capital Reserves 
  

Share Forfieted Retained 

Earnings 

General Reserve 

Total Other Equity 

  

Balance as at April 1, 2022 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net 

of Income Tax 

34.66 = 66.96 - 

- 3.76 - 

101.62 

3.76 

  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 70.72 - 105.38 
  

Dividends/ Tax on Dividend 

Reversal of Dividends/ Tax on Dividend 

(Short) / excess provision for tax 

Transfer from Retained Earnings 
  

Balance as at Mar 31, 2023 
  

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net 

of Income Tax 
  

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 
  

Dividends/ Tax on Dividend 

Reversal of Dividends/Tax on Dividend 

(Short) / excess provision for tax 

Transfer from Retained Earnings 
  

Balance as at March 31, 2024               

As per our report of even date 

For D Kothary & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta Dilip Mehta 

Director CFO 

DIN: 06387976 DIN: 01929640 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 
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PARTICULARS As at 3ist March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023 

(2 in Lakhs) (? in Lakhs) 

Note 5 ;- Investments (Non Current) 

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary 

'12,10,040 (P.Y. 12,10,040) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each Of New-Tech Infrastructure Private] 896.68 896.68 
Limited 

'10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each Of Nocil Infrastructure Limited 181.25 181.25 

Total 1,077.93 1,077.93 

Note 6 :- Other Non Current Assets 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

(a) Tax paid against appeal 71.05 71.05 

(b) Security deposits 0.86 0.86 

Total 71.91 71.91 

Note 7 :- Inventories 

‘Construction Work in Progress 79.05 24.17 

Total 79.05 24.17 

Note 8 :- Trade Receivables 

(Unsecured) 

Considered Good 99.20 125.43 

Considered Doubtful a 

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts ‘i “ 

Total 99.20 125.43 

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 

‘1. Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 

Oustanding from following periods from due date of Payment 

Less than 6 months 31.16 57.39 

6 months to 1 year ® 

1 to 2 years « 

2 to 3 years - 

More than 3 years 68.03 68.03 

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts 

99,20 125.43 

Note 9 :- Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks 

(i) In current accounts 1.18 7 

Cash on hand 2.76 3.35 

Total 3.94 3.35 

Note 10 :- Loans (Current) 

Loans to wholly owned subsidiaries - - 

Total es = 

Note 11 :- Other Current Assets 

Advance to Employees 2.15 2.15 

Other Advances é = 

Advance to Suppliers 44.66 44.66 

Balance with Govt authorities 4.00 , 

Total 50.80 46.81 
   



  

Neo Infracon Limited 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

Note 12 (a) :- Equity 

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024] As at 31st March, 

2023 
(% in Lakhs) (@ in Lakhs) 

Authorised Capital 

60,00,000 (Previous Year 60,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 600.00 600.00 

Total 600.00 600.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 

53,06,800 (Previous Year 53,06,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 530.68 530.68 

Total 530.68 530.68           

Note 12 (b) :- The company has only one class of equity with a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitle to one vote per share. 

Note 12 (c) :- The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is set out below. 

  

  

  

              

  

  

  

  

  

  

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

No. of shares held (= in Lakhs) No. of shares held (2 in Lakhs) 

Equity Shares 

Number of shares at the beginning 53,06,800 531 53,06,800 531 

Add: Fresh Issue - - - - 

Add: Bonus Shares - - = é 

Less: Buy Back - - - - 

Number of shares at the end 53,06,800 531 53,06,800 531 

Note 12 (d) :- Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: 

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

No. of shares held % holding No. of shares held % holding 

Equity shares with voting rights 

Dilip K Mehta 6,16,400 11.62% 6,16,400 11.62% 

Naresh K Mehta 6,05,000 11.40% 6,05,000 11.40% 

Sangeeta N Mehta 3,21,900 6.07% 3,21,900 6.07% 

Note 12(e):-Details of shares held by promoter and percentage change if any at the end of the year: 

No. of shares held % of Total Shares bench bases Bed % Change 
Promoters name PY. 

Dilip K Mehta 6,16,400 11.62% 6,16,400 0.00% 

Naresh K Mehta 6,05,000 11.40% 6,05,000 0.00% 

Sangeeta N Mehta 3,21,900 6.07% 3,21,900 0.00% 

Karina N Mehta 2,65,465 5.00% 2,65,465 0.00% 

Dhruvi D Mehta 2,62,793 4.95% 2,62,793 0.00% 
Pinky D Mehta 2,41,800 4.56% 2,41,800 0.00% 

Bhavik N Mehta 2,30,795 4.35% 2,30,795 0.00% 

Ankush N Mehta 2,18,079 4.11% 2,18,079 0.00% 

Darshik D Mehta 1,02,929 1.94% 1,02,929 0.00%           
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As at 3ist March, | As at 31st March, 
PARTICULARS 2024 2023 

(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) 

Nate 13: 

Share Forfieted Account 34.66 34.66 

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening Balance 70.72 66.96 

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 11.14 3.76 

81.86 70.72. 

Total 116,52 105.38 

Note 14 ;- B ‘ings (N 

Unsecured 

From Related party es we 

From Others = - 

Total - 2 

Note 15 ;- Other non 

Maintenance fund & Other charges 28.37 28.37 

Total 28.37 28.37 

Note 16 :- Borrowings (Current) 

Loan from Related Party 614.23 601.89 
Loan from Others 

- 7 

Total 614.23 601.89 

Note 17 ;- Trade Payabl. nh 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - = 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 96.86 61.53 

Total 96.86 61.53 

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule 

‘1. MSME 

Outstanding for following periods from 

Less than 1 year * = 

1 to 2 years ; - 

2 to 3 years 7 # 

More than 3 years 7 = 

2. OTHERS 

Outstanding for following periods from 

Less than 1 year 59.78 24.45 

1 to 2 years - r 

2 to 3 years = - 

More than 3 years 37.08 37.08 

96.86 61.53 

Note 18 :- Financial Liabilities (C 

Interest Accrued on Borrowing 0.80 0.80 

Total 0.80 0.80 

Note 19 :- Other Current Liabilities (C 

Statutory liabilities 5.42 15.12 

Advances from customers 10.73 10.48 

Bank Overdraft - 0.67 

Total 16.15   
  

26.27
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PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023 

(@ in Lakhs) (@ in Lakhs) 

Note 20 :- Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Flats - - 

Sub Contract Sales 199.86 188.70 

Total 199.86 188.70 

Note 21 :- Other Incomes 

Interest from Others 0.15 - 

Sundry Balance W/ Back 1.71 - 

Total 1.86 - 

Note 22 :- Cost of Sales 

Cost of Flat Sold - - 

Cost with respect to Sub contract sales 142.72 145.04 

Total 142.72 145,04 

Note 23 ;- Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances 14.16 17,28 

Total 14.16 17.28 

Note 24 :- Finance Costs 

Interest expense on unsecured loan 13.72 12.49 

Total 13.72 12.49 

Note 25 :- Other Expenses 

Advertisement expense 1.44 1.28 

Auditors remuneration 0.50 0.50 

Donation 1.01 1.60 

Listing fees 3.25 3.00 

Other Miscellaneous expenses 7.08 0.48 

Printing & Stationery 0.28 0.10 

Professional fees 1.53 1.86 

Rates and taxes 0.79 0.21 

Repairs and Maintainance 1.31 * 

Short Term Lease Rent 0.80 - 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses : 1.11 

Total 18.00 10.14 
   



Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Note 26: Contingent Liabilities 

1 
Corporate Guarantee given by the Company for loan taken from bank by the subsidiary Company Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Previous 
Year Rs. 15,00,00,000). 

Contingent liability not provided for in respect of disputed income tax demand Rs. 3.52,71,440/- for Assessment Year 2016-17 as 

the company has c ted the entire d ds before first appellant authority (CIT Appeals). P 

Note 27: Segment Information for the period March 31, 2024. 

As the Company is engaged only in one business segment i.e. Construction & Sale of Flats and there are no geographical 

segments, the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2024 pertain to 

one business segment and related activities as per Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment’. 

Note 28: Related party transactions 

28.1 

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below 

Relationships during the year 

(A) Subsidiary Company 
Newtech Infrastructure Pvt Ltd 

Nocil Infrastructure Ltd. 

(B) Key Managerial Personnel & Relatives 

Naresh Mehta (Relative) 

Ankush Mehta 

Bhavik Mehta 

Dilipkumar K. Mehta 

Tamanna Rawal (Company Secretary) 

(C) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel Having Significance Influence 

Neo builders Limited 

Neon Metal Impex Pvt Ltd 

Neo builders & Developers (Proprietor) 

Nocil Steels (Partnership) 

Universal Builders & Developers 
Sunlight Realtors Pvt Ltd 

  

  

  

28.2 Related party transactions 

(A) Transactions with related parties during the year : (€ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Salary _ 
Tamanna Rawal (Company Secretary) 3.65 4.26 

Sub Contract Revenue 

Neo Builders & Developers (Propeitor) 199.86 188.70 

Interest Payable on Loan 

  

Nocil Infrastructure Ltd. 13.72 12.49 

Loan Given 

New-Tech Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. (Repaid) - - 

Nocil Infrastructure Ltd. (Repaid) - 9.50 

Loan Taken 
  

New-Tech Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. - - 

Nocil Infrastructure Ltd. = - 

Outstanding as on 31st March, 2024 
  

Balance Payable / (Receivable) 

Mr, Naresh K. Mehta ‘351.00 351.00 
Mr. Dilip K. Mehta 103.60 103.60 
Neo Builders & Developers (Propeitor) (31.16)| (57.39) 

Nocil Infrastructure Ltd. 159.63 147,28          
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Note 30: Earnings per share (@ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Net profit after tax as per profit and loss statement 11.14 3.76 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 53,06,800 53,06,800 

Nominal value per equity share 10 10 

Basic earnings per share (absolute figures) 0.21 0.07 

Diluted earnings per share (absolute figures) 0.21 0,07         
  

Note 31: Auditors' Remuneration 

Particulars 

Audit fees 0.50 0.50 

  

TOTAL 0.50 0.50 

Note 32: Provision for retirement benefits to employees was not provided on accrual basis, which is not in-conformity with Ind AS 24 

issued by ICAI and the amount has not been quantified because actuarial valuation report is not available. However, in the 

opinion of the management the amount involved is negligible and has no material impact on the Profit & Loss Account. 

Note 33: Trade payable, Trade receivables, loan and advances balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. 

Note 34: The Company has not received intimation from most of the suppliers regarding the status under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprise Development Act, 2006, and hence disclosure requirements in this regard as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 

2013 is not being provided. 

Note 35 Other Statutory Information 

i) | The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 

holding any Benami property. 

ii) | The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
iii) | The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
vi) | The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 
vii) | The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 
viii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

Note 36: Figures of previous year are regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to correspond to figures of the current 

year 

  

For D. Kothary & Co. For Neo Infracon Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria Ankush N. Mehta Dilip K. Mehta 

Partner Director CFO 

Membership No.: 121190 DIN: 06387976 DIN: 01929640 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 Date : 25th May 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 

Neo Infracon Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Neo Infracon Limited (herein after referred 
as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 
“the Group”) , which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after 
referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state 

of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2024, their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), their 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group, in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. There are no key audit matters to be disclosed. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report, 

Shareholders’ Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial 

statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.



If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that give a true and fair view of 

the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 

Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.



e« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its 
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which 
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

We also did the audit of the financial statements of two subsidiaries namely New-Tech Infrastructure Private Limited 

and Nocil Infrastructure Limited. The consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 3,171.88 lakhs as at 

31st March 2024; as well as the total revenue of Rs. 183 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 in respect of two subsidiaries. 

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other 

auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial information of a subsidiaries as noted in the 
‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.



(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the 
report of the other auditor. 

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 
by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules there under. 

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary company covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies are 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting of the Group 

(g) 

(h) 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “ Annexure A” and 

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2024 has been paid/ provided by the 

Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate 
financial statements as also the other financial information of a subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ 
paragraph: 

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group. 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There is no amount due to transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company 

during the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 39(v) to 
the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 39(vi) to 
the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub- 
clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v. The dividend has not been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

vi. Based on my examination, which included test checks, performed by us on the the Company and its 
subsidiaries incorporated in India, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the 
course of my audit I did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with 

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(the “Order” / “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included 
in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO 
reports issued by us for its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding 
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks in these CARO reports. 

For D. Kothary & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 105335W) 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No. 121190 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 May 2024 

UDIN No. 24121190BKBOTC1376



Annexure - A 

To the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Neo Infracon Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Neo Infracon Limited (“the Company”) as 
of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the 
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial control system with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of



the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

operating effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Holding Company, considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by the ICAT. 

For D.Kothary & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 105335W) 

Deepak O, Narsaria 
Partner 
Membership No. 121190 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 May 2024 
UDIN No. 24121190BKBOTC1376



Neo Infracon Limited 
CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

Sr. No. Particulars Notes As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs 

L |ASSETS 

1 |Non Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 132.10 131.85 
(b) Goodwill on Consolidation 291.55 291.55 
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 4.69 4.98 
(d) Other non-current assets 6 85.49 104.63 

513.82 533.01 
2 |Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 7 2,184.75 2,059.28 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 8 190.50 249,49 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 26.73 11,62 

(iii) Loans 10 7.53 7.49 
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 3.62 5.32 

(d) Other current assets 11 342.66 178.05 

2,755.79 2,511.26 

TOTAL 3,269.60 3,044.26 

fl. JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 530.68 530.68 

(b) Other Equity 13 64.26 76.92 

594.94 607,60 

LIABILITIES 

1 _|Non Current Liabilities 

(a) _ Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 14 999.42 69.74 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - a 

(c) | Other non Current Liabilites 15 184.69 185,71 

1,184.11 255.45 
2 =|Current Liabilites 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 16 656.88 1,243.65 
(ii) Trade payables 17 

(a) total outstanding dues of creditors Micro and 

Small enterprises 2 - 

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

Micro and Small enterprises 148,42 139.44 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 0.80 0.80 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 684.45 796.77 

(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - 0.56 

1,490.55 2,181.22 

TOTAL 3,269.60 3,044.26 
  

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Ankush N. Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Dilip K. Mehta 
CFO 
DIN: 01929640 

 



Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN: L65910MH1981PLC248089 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Notes eat ee 
Amount In Lakhs | Amount In Lakhs 

Revenue from operations 20 382.86 643.40 

Other incomes 21 102.45 151.91 

Total Income 485.31 795.32 

Expenses: 

Cost of Sales 22 245.12 538.86 

Employee benefit expenses 23 67.58 70.31 

Finance cost 24 56.86 72.70 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 4 22.96 21.19 

Other Expenses 25 98.84 104.53 

Total Expenses 491.37 807.59 

Profit before tax (6.06) (12.27) 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 6.31 4.55 

Short/ (Excess) tax provision for earlier years - 0.30 

Deferred tax 0.30 (0.57) 

Profit for the year (12.66) (16.55) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items will not be reclassified to profit & loss 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on defined benefit plans - - 

Tax on above : - 

Total Comprehensive Income (12.66) (16.55) 

Earning per share on Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 29 

- Basic & Diluted (0.24) (0.31)             

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Dilip K. Mehta 

CFO 

DIN: 01929640



Neo Infracon Limited 

CIN No. U26922DL1996PLC075205 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs 

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities : 

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss (6.06) (12.27) 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation 22.96 21.19 

Interest Income “ = 

Interest Expenses 56.86 72.70 

Operating Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital 73.77 81.61 

Changes in current assets and liabilities 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 58.99 (85.62) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans (0.03) 0.70 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets (145.47) 244.38 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (125.47) 397.12 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 8.99 (11.78) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities = 7 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current & Non-Current Liabilities (113.34) (352.89) 

Cash Generated From Operations (242.58) 273.53 

Payment of Taxes (Net of Refunds) (5.16) (6.83) 

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A) (247.74) 266.69 

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities : 

Payment of property, plant & equipments & Intangibles (23.20) (67.73) 

Interest income - - 

Net Cash Flow From Investment Activities (B) (23.20) (67.73) 

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities : 

(Repayment) / Borrowing from financial institutions/ Others 342.92 (128.27) 

Fiancial Expenses (56.86) (72.70) 

Net Increase In Cash Or Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 15.11 (2.00) 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year 11.62 13.62 

Cash And Cash Equivalents As At The End Of The Year 26.73 11.62 
          

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For D. Kothary & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W. 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Ankush N. Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dilip K. Mehta 

CFO 

DIN: 01929640



Neo Infracon Limited 

Consolidated Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. 

b) 

Company’s Background: 

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Neo Inftacon 

Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31-March-2024. 
The Company is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India under 
the Companies Act, 1956 vide CIN - L65910MH1981PLC248089. The Company's 
registered office is located at 52/52A, Nanubhai Desai road, 9 Mulji thakarsi Bldg, 
Sindhi lane, Mumbai - 400004. The Company is engaged in the infrastructure sector, 

primarily in the construction of Commercial or Industrial Building & Civil Structures, 
Construction of Residential Complex. 

Material Accounting Policies: Basis of preparation of financial statements 

Statement of Compliance: 
The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 

amended from time to time). 

Basis of preparation and presentation: 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies Act 2013, read together 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time 
to time). 

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had 
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting standards (Previous 

GAAP) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable, and the 
presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 
133 read with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 as amended and 

the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively, “Ind AS”) with effect 
from April 1, 2017 and the Company is required to prepare its financial statements in 
accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017. These financial statements 

for the year ended March 31, 2019 are the first financial statements the company has 

prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 
The transition to Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First- Time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards with the date of transition as April 01, 2016. 

There is no transition effect during the year from the date of transition as April 01, 2016.



Neo Infracon Limited 

Consolidated Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

c) Basis of consolidation: 
These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Group 
and all its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group: 
e Has power over the investee; 
¢ Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; 

and 
e Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances 
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed 
above. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and 
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the 
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss from the date the Group gains control until the 
date when the Group ceased to control the subsidiary. Profit and loss and each 
component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the shareholders of the 
Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries 
is attributed to the shareholders of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if 
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the 
parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of 

subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with accounting policies of the 
Group. 

All Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses 
arising from intra- Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered. 

d) Basis of measurement 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in 
accordance with the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated. These 

consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of 
the Act. All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the 
operating cycle of less than twelve months or based on the criteria of 
realisation/ settlement within twelve months period from the balance sheet date. 

Subsidiaries/ Associates included in consolidation 

  

  

  

Name of Enterprises Country of | Nature of Business | Controlling Interest 
‘ incorporation . 

Newtech Infrstructure | India Construction 100% 
Private Limited 

Nocil Infrastructure | India Construction 100% 
Limited           
 



Neo Infracon Limited 

Consolidated Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

e) Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements required the management to 
exercise judgment and to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that 

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going 
basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future period. 

f) Functional and presentation currency 
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. 

g) Revenue Recognition: 
Revenue from real estate developmental projects under development is recognised 

based on ‘Percentage Completion Method’. 
The Percentage Completion Method is applied when the stage of completion of the 
project reaches a reasonable level of development. For projects that commenced on or 
after 1st April 2012 or where revenue on a project is being recognised for the first time 

on or after that date, the threshold for ‘reasonable level of development’ is considered to 
have been met when the criteria specified in the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real 
Estate Transactions (Revised 2012) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India are satisfied, i.e., when: 

(i) The expenditure incurred on construction and development costs is not less than 25 

% of the construction and development costs. 
(ii) Atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with 

buyers. 

(iii) Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other legally 
enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the 
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply 

with the payment terms as defined in the contracts. 
Sale of plots and completed units is recognised at the sale consideration when all 
significant risks and rewards of ownership in the property is transferred to the buyer 
and are net of adjustments on account of cancellation. 
Facility charges, management charges, rental, hire charges, sub lease and maintenance 
income are recognised on accrual basis as per the terms and conditions of relevant 

agreements. 

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of relevant contracts or by 
using the effective interest method, where applicable. 

-h) Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The Function currency of the Group is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Indian rupees (rounded off to lakhs). 
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate that prevailing on the 
date of transactions. Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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i) 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining 
unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end rates. The difference in 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign 
exchange transactions are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary) denominated in a foreign 
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the closing rate at the year 
end. 

Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project 
cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use ie. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are 
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual 
borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed 
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is 
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a 
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a 
weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Group 
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active 
development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

Employee Benefits: 
Retirement and Other Employee Benefits: 
Retirement and other Employee benefits are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 19 - 
Employee Benefits. 

i) Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits: 
Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 

ii) Provident Fund: 
Contribution to Provident fund (a defined contribution plan) made to Regional 

Provident Fund Commissioner are recognised as expense. 

iii) Defined Benefit Plans 
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined 
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the 
end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and 
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan 
assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a 
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 

occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is_ reflected 
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost 
is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan
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amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of 

the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 

k) Taxation: 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

I) Current Tax: 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as 
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the countries where the 
Group operates and generates taxable income. 

Il) Deferred Tax: 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on differences between 

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

III) Current and deferred tax for the year: 
Current and deferred tax are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

1) Property, plant and equipment: 
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises of 
purchase price, applicable duties and taxes, any directly attributable expenditure on 
making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on 
borrowings attributable to acquisition/construction of qualifying PPE, that takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, upto the date the asset is 
ready for its intended use. The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located is required to be included in the cost 
of the respective item of property plant and equipment and Cost of major inspections is 
recognised in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as a replacement, if 
recognition criteria are satisfied and any remaining carrying amount of the cost of 
previous inspection is derecognised. PPE retired from active use and held for sale are 

stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and are disclosed 
separately.
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An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 

recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

m) Depreciation and Amortisation: 

P) 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment and investment property have been 

provided on the straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to 

the Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical evaluation of the asset. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate. 

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that 

an asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset's carrying amount is written down 

immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its 

estimated recoverable amount. 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the 

carrying amount and are recognised within operating profit in the Income statement. 

Inventories: 
Inventories are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable value, whichever is 

lower. Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials to the place of usage, 

excluding refundable duties and taxes. Cost is determined on the following basis: 

- Completed Flats- At lower of Cost or Market Value. 
- Construction Work in progress-At Cost. 
Construction Work in Progress includes Cost of Land, Construction Cost, allocated 

Interest and expenses incidental to projects undertaken by the Group. 

Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs 

expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
The Group recognises provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such 

obligation can be reliably estimated. 
A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a 

possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an 

outflow of resources. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when 

flow of economic benefits is probable. 

Financial instruments: 4 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 

financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
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through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

A) Financial Assets 

i) 

ii) 

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 
Financial assets carried at amortised cost: 
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. 
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months 
after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets 

are measured initially at fair value which usually represents cost plus transaction 

costs and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment loss if any. 
Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security and 

other deposits, cash and cash equivalent, employee and other advances. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): 

For investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the Group has 
exercised the option to classify the investment as at FVTOCLI, all fair value changes 
on the investment are recognized in OCI. The accumulated gains or losses on such 
investments are not recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale of such 
investment. 

iii) Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets other than the equity investments and investment classified as 

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. These include surplus funds invested in mutual 
funds etc. 

B) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments. 

Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance 

Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future 
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
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q) Fair value of financial instruments: 

t) 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of 

methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each 

reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow 
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair 
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may or may not be 
realized. 

Impairment of Assets: 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment: 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 

not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 

determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of 

the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is 
reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. 

Fair value measurement: 
The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

Leases: 
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 

is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. At the date of commencement of the lease, the
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Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all 
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except short-term leases and low value leases. 
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a 
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option 
is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a 

lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any 
options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease 
term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements 

undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the 
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the 
location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease 

term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current 
economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the 

Group has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing 
lease contracts. 

u) Earnings Per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year 
attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, 

attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the equity 
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the 
results are anti-dilutive. 

v) Cash Flow Statement: 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 

extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature 
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on 
the available information. 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are 
short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Note A :- Equity share Capital 

  

  

      

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

PARTICULARS Note Amount In Lakhs 

As at 31st March 2023 530.68 

(Changes in Equity share capital during the year - 

As at 31st March 2024 12 530.68 

Note B : Other Equity Amount In Lakhs 

Reserves & Surplus Capital Reserves | Total Other Equity 

Particulars Share Forfieted |General Reserve | Retained Earnings 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 34.66 - 58.81 93.47 

Profit for the year - - (16.55) (16.55) 

(Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net 
of Income Tax z “ e m 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 34.66 - 42.26 76.92 

Dividends/Tax on Dividend - - - 

Reversal of Dividends/ Tax on Dividend - - - « 

(Short) / excess provision for tax . = < 8 

Transfer from Retained Earnings z z s 2 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 34.66 - 42.26 76.92 

Profit for the year - - (12.66) (12.66) 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net 

of Income Tax - 7 7 - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 34.66 - 29.60 64,26 

Dividends/Tax on Dividend - - - 

Reversal of Dividends /Tax on Dividend - - - - 

(Short) / excess provision for tax - - - as 

‘Transfer from Retained Earnings - - - . 

Balance As at March 31, 2024 34,66 - 29.60 64.26 
  

As per our report of even date 

For D Kothary & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105335W 

Deepak O. Narsaria 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121190 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ankush N. Mehta 

DIN: 06387976 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 25th May 2024 

Dilip K. Mehta 

DIN: 01929640 
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PARTICULARS As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 

Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs 

Note 5 :- Deferred tax Assets (Net) 

‘On acount of fixed assets 4.69 4.98 

Total 4.69 4.98 

Note 6 :- Other Non Current Assets 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

(a) Balance with Government authorities 84,52 89,63 

(b) Loans 
. . 

(c) Security deposits 0.96 15.00 

Total 85.49 104.63 

Note 7 :- Inventories 

‘Constriction Work in Progress 2,184.75 2,059.28 

Total 2,184.75 2,059.28 

Note 8 :- Trade Receivables 

(Unsecured) 

Considered Good 190.50 249,49 

Considered Doubtful 
" _ 

Less ; Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts - - 

Total 190,50 249.49 

Note 9 :- Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks 

(i) In current accounts 18.86 2.53 

Cash on hand 7.87 9.10 

Total 26.73 11.62 

Note 10 :- Loans (Current) 

Loans to Others 7.53 7.49 

‘Loans to Holding Company 
e 

Loan to Related Party iz - 

Total 7.53 7A9 

Note 11 :- Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 19.02 0.75 

Balance with Government authorities 4.00 = 

Advance to employees 215 2.15 

Advance to suppliers 317.49 175.16 

Other Advances 
a 2 

Rent Receivable 
z . 

Total 342.66 178.05   
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Note 12 (a) :- Equity 

As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 

PARTICULARS 

Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs 

Authorised Capital 

60,00,000 (Previous Year 60,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 600.00 600.00 

Total 600.00 600.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 

53,06,800 (Previous Year 53,06,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 530.68 530.68 

Total 530.68 530.68 
            

Note 12 (b) :- The company has only one class of equity with a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitle to one 
vote per share. 

Note 12 (c) :- The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 

  

  

  

              

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

2023 is set out below 

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

PARTICULARS 
No. of shares held Amount In Lakhs No. of shares held | Amount In Lakhs 

Equity Shares 

Number of shares at the beginning 53,06,800 531 53,06,800 531 

Add: Fresh Issue - - - - 

Add: Bonus Shares - - - - 

Less: Buy Back - - - - 

Number of shares at the end 53,06,800 531 53,06,800 531 

Note 12 (d) :- Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: 

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Class of shares / Name of shareholder No. of shares held ; No. of shares held . 
“ holding % holding 

Equity shares with voting rights 

Dilip K Mehta 6,16,400 11.62% 6,16,400 11.62% 

Naresh K Mehta 6,05,000 11.40% 6,05,000 11.40% 

Sangeeta N Mehta 3,21,900 6.07% 3,21,900 6.07% 

Note 12(e):-Details of shares held by promoter and percentage change if any at the end of the year: 

Promoter Name No. of shares held | %of Total Shares | °° vanes held | «of Total Shares 

Dilip K Mehta 6,16,400 11.62% 6,16,400 0.00% 

Naresh K Mehta 6,05,000 11.40% 6,05,000 0.00% 

Sangeeta N Mehta 3,21,900 6.07% 3,21,900 0.00% 

Karina N Mehta 2,65,465 5.00% 2,65,465 0.00% 

Dhruvi D Mehta 2,62,793 4.95% 2,62,793, 0.00% 

Pinky D Mehta 2,41,800 4.56% 2,41,800 0.00% 

Bhavik N Mehta 2,30,795 4.35% 2,30,795 0.00% 

Ankush N Mehta 2,18,079 4.11% 2,18,079 0.00% 

Darshik D Mehta 1,02,929 1.94% 1,02,929 0.00%         
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CULAR As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

rami . Amount In Lakhs Amount In Lakhs 

Note 13: Other Equity 

Share Forfieted Account 34.66 34.66 

Securities Premium - = 

Surpl it) in it and 

Opening balance 42.26 58.81 

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (12.66) (16.55) 

29.60 42.26 

Total 64.26 76.92 

Note 14 :- Bi ii jon C 

Secured. 
From Bank 981.11 = 

Vehicle Loan 18.31 69.74 

Unsecured 

From Director & Related Parties = - 

From Others - - 

Total 999.42 69.74 

NOTE 15 :- Defi Tax i t 

Tax t of items constitutin tax liabili 

On account of fixed assets - = 

Total . = 

Note 16 :- Bi ni 

Loan from Holding Company - - 

Loan From Other 128.13 128.13 

Loan From Related Party 487.20 715.32 

Current maturity of Borrowings 41,55 400.20 

Total 656.88 1,243.65 

Note 17 :- Trade Payable (Current) 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

148.42 139.44 

Total 148.42 139.44 

<O) Fi bare 

|Current maturities of long term borrowings - - 

Interest Accrued on Borrowing 0.80 0.80 

Total 0.80 0.80 

Note 19 :- O i jes (C it 

Statutory liabilities 17.90 29,32 

Advances from customers 635.23 725.61 

Other Payables 13.46 17.60 

Creditors for expenses 17.86 23,57 

Book Overdraft - 0.67 

Total 684.45 796.77    


